
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Licensing Panel

Members of the Licensing Panel of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned to attend a 
meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Suite on Thursday, 6 January 2022 at 10.00 
am when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for absence 

2. To declare any interest Members may have in the applications being 
considered.   When declaring an interest a Member must state what their 
interest is. 

3. Consideration of an application for a review of the premises licence for 
Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0PR 

(Pages 3 - 48)

Part B
Items likely to be considered in private

None. 

Members



 
 

Councillors: Steve Thompson (Chair) 
John Caller 
Frank Wardle 

Substitutes: To be notified



Classification: Private
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Panel

Date:  6 January 2022

Reporting officer: Emily Lane-Blackwell

Subject: Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0PR

Purpose and summary of report: 
To consider the the application for a review of the premises licence for Cricketers, 47 Arthur 
Street, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0PR

Recommendations:
1. Members are requested to determine this review on its merits

1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing 
authority) to carry out its various functions so as to promote the following four 
licensing objectives:

1.1.1 The prevention of crime and disorder

1.1.2 The protection of public safety

1.1.3 The prevention of public nuisance

1.1.4 The protection of children from harm

1.2 The 2003 Act requires the council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ that 
sets out the policies the council will generally apply to promote the licensing 
objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act.  The 
council adopted its Statement of Licensing Policy on 20 December 2004.  As 
required by section 5 of the Act this policy has been subject to three yearly 
revisions with the current policy set to expire on 15 April 2024.  The Policy will be 
available at the meeting for reference purposes.

1.3 Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out 
their functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182.  The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario 
or set of circumstances that may arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has 
properly understood and considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



2

has reason to do so.  However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have 
regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for any departure from it.  
This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from the 
Guidance result in a determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review.  
The Guidance will be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

1.4 A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to 
an application, along with a copy of the Hearing regulations has been circulated to 
all parties prior to the meeting.

2. Background

2.1 The current premises Licence for Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent 
DA12 2EB is held by Mr Mandeep Manik.

2.2 Mr Manik has been the licence holder since July 2018.

2.3 This licence allows the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises 
and recorded music.

2.4 A copy of the full licence can be seen as Appendix 2.

3. The Review Application

3.1 On 16 November 2021 the Licensing Authority received an application from 
Environmental Protection for a review of the premises licence in respect of 
Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB.

3.2 The grounds for the review are that:

3.2.1 Three separate households have been unreasonably disturbed by loud 
music from the premises on a frequent basis;

3.2.2 The Environmental Protection team imposed a noise abatement notice 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, which required the recipient 
to cease further noise nuisance. 

3.2.3 A very clear breach of this notice was witnessed.

3.3 The Environmental Protection team are asking that the panel impose a condition 
that remove the ability for the premises to have music.

3.4 A copy of the application can be seen as Appendix 3.  

3.5 On 14th December 2021, Environmental Protection submitted a witness statement 
and some google street shots that are referred to in the statement. These can be 
found as Appendix 4.

3.6 The Environmental Protection team have also submitted a video clip taken on a 
mobile phone on the night of the noise abatement notice breach.

4. Consultation period

4.1 It is a requirement of the Licensing Act 2003, that the licensing authority advertise 
the review inviting representations from any person for 28 consecutive days.  A 
notice was displayed on the Gravesham Borough Council website and at the 
premises.

Page 4



3

4.2 During this period the licensing authority received one representation.  This can 
be found as Appendix 5.

5. Papers from Premises Licence Holder

5.1 On 30 November 2021 the licence holder contacted Environmental Protection 
notifying them of extra measures that have implemented and a copy of their risk 
assessment.  

5.2 Following confirmation from the licence holder these documents have been 
included as part of this report.  These can be found as Appendices 6 and 7.

5.3 On 15 December the licence holder submitted a letter in response to the 
representation received from a member of public.

6. Live and recorded music at a premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003

6.1 The Live Music Act 2012 and The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) 
Order 2014 amended the Licensing Act 2003 and deregulated forms of previously 
regulated entertainment.

6.2 Following the above amendments, the premises licence for the Cricketers, is 
currently permitted to carry out the following without the need of a licence:

6.2.1 Live unamplified music between 08.00 to 23.00;

6.2.2 Live amplified music with an audience of no more than 500 between 08.00 
to 23.00;

6.2.3 Recorded music with an audience of no more than 500 between 08.00 to 
23.00

6.3 Section 177A (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 states

6.3.1 On a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate a licensing 
authority may (without prejudice to any other steps available to it under this 
Act) add a condition relating to music as if –

6.3.1.1 The music were regulated entertainment, and

6.3.1.2 The licence or certificate licensed the music.

6.4 If the panel wish to add any conditions specifically related to live or recorded 
music in any form, the condition must include a statement that Section 177A does 
not apply to the condition.

7. Decision

7.1 At the hearing the panel must decide what steps it considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.

7.2 The steps the panel can take are:

7.2.1 The modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

7.2.1.1 This can include the alteration or modification of existing 
conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that 

Page 5



4

restrict the times at which licensable activities authorised by the 
licence can take place.

7.2.1.2 This can also include conditions relating to music as if

7.2.1.2.1.1.1 The music were regulated entertainment, and

7.2.1.2.1.1.2 The licence licensed the music.

7.2.2 The exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

7.2.3 The removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;

7.2.4 The suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and

7.2.5 The revocation of the licence.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

Page 6



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal The Licensing Panel is obliged to determine this application with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives.  In making its decision, the licensing panel 
is also obliged to have regards to the Secretary of State's Guidance and the 
Council's adopted Licensing Policy.
The licensing panel must also have regard to all the representations and evidence it 
hears.
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, the decision can be appealled to the 
Magistrates' Court within 21 days of the notification of decision. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

There are no direct financial requirements at this time. There is the possibility of a 
challenge by way of appeal.

Risk Assessment      

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan There are direct links to Corporate objective 1 - Safe Gravesham, there are indirect 
links to Corporate objectives 2 - Stronger Gravesham and 3 - Sustainable 
Gravesham.

Crime and Disorder There are obvious links to community safety and the perception of crime and 
disorder if licensed premsies, particularly those that supply alcohol are not 
managed properly and adequately enforced.

Page 7

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


6

Digital and website 
implications

Basic notices will need updating on the website.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

The Licensing Act requires premises licence holders to promote the licensing 
objective to protect children from harm.
Licensing authorities must play their part in taking the required action against those 
that don’t appear to be upholding this objective.

Page 8



05/12/2018

Page 1 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

LICENSING ACT 2003
Premises Licence
Premises licence number: 18/00657/LAPL04

Part 1 - Premises details
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

The Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street 

Post town:  Gravesend Post code: DA11 0PR

Telephone number: 01474 32 73 01

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Sale by retail of alcohol and recorded music

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Recorded music and sale of alcohol
Monday to Friday 13:00 to 00.00
Saturday 11:00 to 00:00
Sunday Noon to 00:00

Good Friday 12:00 to 22.30 
Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours 
on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, midnight on 31st 
December).

The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the 
premises;
(b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the premises 
unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;
(c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of  the alcohol on the 
premises by persons taking meals there if the alcohol was supplied for consumption as ancillary to 
the meals;
(d) consumption of the alcohol on the premises or the taking of sale or supply of alcohol to any 
person residing in the licensed premises;
(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of the 
alcohol so ordered;
(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club;
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or 
supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess 
of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces;
 (h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; or
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person residing 
there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the consumption of  alcohol by 
persons so supplied; or
(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the 
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of liquor so 
supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or in 
charge of the business on the premises.

Page 9



05/12/2018

Page 2 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the permitted hours 
unless one of the following applies:
(1) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.
(2) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.
(3) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises which is 
not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of access or egress.
(4) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and intended to be 
used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence is ancillary.
In this condition “bar” includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption of 
intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for the 
service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to their table 
meals.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Friday 13:00 to 00.00
Saturday 11:00 to 00:00
Sunday Noon to 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

On and off

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence

Mr Mandeep Ricky Manik
The Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0PR

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Mandeep Ricky Manik

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mandatory conditions

Condition 1 – took effect 24 November 2005
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:-

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of it or
(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his/her personal licence is suspended.

Page 10



05/12/2018

Page 3 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence.

Condition 7 – took effect 1 October 2014
 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging 
the sale of supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises  

(a) Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to

(i)  Drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol) or

(ii) Drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)

(b) Provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) Provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in 
a manner which carries significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) Dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of 
disability).

Condition 8 – took effect 1 October 2014
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it reasonably available.

Condition 9 – took effect 1 October 2014
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply 
of alcohol

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age 
verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on 
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of 
birth and either

Page 11



05/12/2018

Page 4 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

  (a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature

Condition 10 – took effect 1 October 2014
The responsible person must ensure that:-

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in 
the following measures:-

     (i)   beer or cider: ½ pint;
     (ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35 ml; and
     (iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; and

(b) These measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) Where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Condition 11 – took effect 28 May 2014
(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price, which is less than the permitted price.

(2) For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph 1:-

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979(6);

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula:- P = D + (D x V) where:- 

(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force 
a premises licence:-

(i)   the holder of the premises licence
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under 

such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force 
a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in 
question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 
Added Tax Act 1994(7)

Page 12



05/12/2018

Page 5 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

(3)  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) would (apart from 
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded 
up to the nearest penny.

(4)  (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph (2) on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price 
on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or 
value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 
the second day.

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

There will be no admittance to the premises by members of the public after 23:00.

Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exits asking customers to respect the 
needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.

Children will not be permitted on the premises after 21.00. When children are on the premises they 
must be accompanied by a responsible adult.

Signed: 

Mark Lees HND MSc AMIOA MCIEH
Regulatory Services Manager Dated: 07 August 2018

Page 13



05/12/2018

Page 6 of 6
18/00657/LAPL04

          

Page 14



 
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003 

 
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I  Keith Neil Moorhouse, on behalf of Gravesham Borough Council Environmental 

Protection 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 
 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
The Cricketers Public House 
47 Arthur Street 

Post town   Gravesend Post code (if known)  DA11 0PR 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 
Mr Mandeep Manik 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known  
18/00657/LAPL04 

 
 
Part 2 - Applicant details  

I am  
 Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 
 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 
 
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 

 
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 15



2 

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 
premises 

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick yes 

I am 18 years old or over 
 

 

 

Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 
 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      

E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

Page 16



3 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 
 Name and address 
Keith Moorhouse 
Regulatory Services 
Environmental Protection Team 
Gravesham Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Windmill Street 
Gravesend 
DA12 1AU 

Telephone number (if any) 
01474 337308 

E-mail address (optional)  
ep@gravesham.gov.uk 

  
 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
 
The actions below were taken by the Environmental Protection Team following 
complaints from 3 separate households that they are unreasonably disturbed by loud 
music from this premises on a frequent basis. 
 

 16th June 2021 – First letter to premises advising them of noise complaint, 
following receipt of diary sheets and requesting that they consider if the 
complaint has merit, to take action to prevent possible noise nuisance and 
warning of monitoring by our service if further complaints are made. 
 

 Noise complaints continued to be made by residents so in response one of 
our recorders was installed at the complainant most affected.  This picked up 
an unacceptably loud level of music from 19:30 to midnight on Saturday 25th 
September 2021 that could be clearly heard above the complainant’s TV. 
 

 On the evidence of the recorder a noise abatement notice under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 was served on Mr Mandeep Manik as the 
Premises Supervisor and DPS, on 5th October 2021.  The notice required an 
immediate cessation to further noise nuisance, and the accompanying letter 
explained the process and possible consequences of breaching the notice. 
 

 Mr Manik was also emailed the same day, advised of the notices served and 
requested to withdraw his TEN for 30th October 2021 as our service would 
object on the grounds of meeting the prevention of public nuisance license 
objective.  Mr Manik did withdraw his TEN but insisted that he was the victim.  
 

 Myself and Piotr Pisarczykoski, Environmental Health Technician, carried out 

Page 17



4 

an out of hours visit to assess the level of disturbance from the Cricketers on 
30th October 2021.  We arrived at the location at 23:40.  Music from the 
premises could be heard as we turned onto Arthur Street from Wrotham 
Road, approx. 130 meters from the PH and was loud enough to be an 
unreasonable disturbance as far away as Brandon Street approx. 60 meters 
from the PH.  I recorded video/audio on my work iPhone as we walked past 
the premises and also in the nearest complainant’s home.  In my 14 years of 
investigating noise complaints this was the loudest music I have heard, with 
the music from the premises being even louder than witnessed on the 
Highstreet in the town centre later the same night.  The complainant’s wall 
vibrated with the bass music when touched.  The level of disturbance was a 
very clear breach of the noise abatement notice.  It would have been very 
easy for Mr Manik and staff at the Cricketers to have gauged that the volume 
of music was excessive and would have been heard clearly by large numbers 
of residents in the vicinity of the PH, by simply walking up one of the streets 
as we did.  This demonstrates in our opinion a continuing lack of 
consideration for local residents, and/or poor management of the venue as 
well as a disregard for the noise abatement notice that had been served. 
 

 Mr Manik was written to on 3rd November, and advised that a breach of the 
notice had been witnessed by officers of our service.  He was formally 
cautioned. 
 

 Mr Manik has emailed our service on 4 occasions regarding this matter. The 
first two emails being on 5th October in response to service of the noise 
abatement notice and our request he withdraw his TEN for the 30th October, 
and the forth time on 4th November in reply to our letter advising him he had 
breached the notice.  Mr Manik throughout has considered himself the victim 
of malicious neighbours and that he follows ‘all the rules’.  He considers that 
not playing music every night until midnight shows that he considers his 
neighbours. 
 
Complaints have continued to be made and video/audio files provided by 
residents appears to show that the premises continues to play unreasonably 
loud music. 
 

 The EP Team are currently compiling a case to put to legal services for 
breach of the legal notice.  However such action would not guarantee the 
nuisance ceases even if a fine is issued. 
 

 It is the opinion of the Environmental Protection Team that Mr Manik has 
been given ample notice and opportunity to cease causing local residents a 
noise nuisance, has being advised of the possible consequences should he 
continue and yet has demonstrated in his communications with our service 
that he does not accept he is doing anything wrong.  He considers himself the 
victim of malicious and jealous neighbours that do not wish to see him 
succeed as a business, and that writing to let neighbours know of music 
events and not playing music until midnight Monday to Thursday is sufficient 
to show he respects his neighbours.  For the event witnessed by officers on 
30th October he said that he took everything into consideration for his 
neighbours and the music was less then what it normally is.  He also said in 
his email of 4th November that in future he will turn down the music even 
further.  Despite this the EP Team have continued to receive noise complaints 
regarding events on 4th Nov, 6th Nov, 7th Nov (which also included allegation 
of playing music past midnight), and 11th Nov.  Videos provided by the 
complainant appear to support the allegations with the exception of playing 
music past midnight. 

Page 18



5 

 
 

 The property is within a predominately residential area surrounded by 
suburban residential streets and shares a party wall with one of those 
residential properties, and as such it is unlikely to be able to meet the 
licensing objective of preventing public nuisance if operated as a music/party 
event venue.  
 

 Mr Manik has not changed the way his premises is operated and has failed to 
prevent further unreasonable disturbances. We therefore believe the only 
actions that will prevent an unreasonable level of disturbance to residents and 
promote the core licence objective of the prevention of public nuisance, is for 
the condition of music as a licensable activity to be added back to the license 
and for the activity to be denied.     

 
 

 
 

Page 19



6 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application 
(please read guidance note 2) 
 
      

 
 

Page 20



7 

 

Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

Day Month Year 

                
 

 

 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
      

 

 
Please tick yes 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 21



8 

 
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature      
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Date             16.11.21 
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity    
N/A………………………………………………………………………………………………
… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  
 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

 
Gravesham Borough Council processes personal data consistent with the 
General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018.  For more 
information about how the Council processes your personal data please see 
the privacy notice on our website at: www.gravesham.gov.uk/privacy 

Page 22

http://www.gravesham.gov.uk/privacy


Signed…… ……………………………………..

Page 1 of 5

GRAVESHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

WITNESS STATMENT

STATEMENT OF:  Keith Moorhouse

AGE:  Over 21

OCCUPATION:  Senior Environmental Health Technician

This Statement (consisting of 5 pages signed by me) is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be 
liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false or do 
not believe to be true.

Dated 10th day of December 2021

Signature … ………………………………………………….

I, Keith Moorhouse, am employed by Gravesham Borough Council as a Senior 

Environmental Health Technician working within Regulatory Services. I have over 13 

years experience in the role and am authorised by them under the Environmental 

Protection Act 1990 amongst other legislation.  My duties include investigating noise 

nuisances, resolving matters informally when possible, and when necessary 

considering enforcement actions to protect the public from unreasonable disturbances.

In response to resident’s complaints of noise nuisance emanating from the Cricketers 

PH, starting in May 2021, and subsequent diary sheets showing a potential nuisance, 

we wrote to the Cricketers on June 16th, advising them of the allegations and asking 

them to consider if the complaints had any merit, and if so to take actions to cease 

causing a noise nuisance.  Our contact information was included with the letter however 

we did not receive a response and residents continued to report noise disturbances.  

An out of hours visit to the area was therefore carried out by myself and Piotr on 

Saturday 28th August between 21:00 and 21:30.  We observed loud music and karaoke 

Page 23



Signed…… ……………………………………..

Page 2 of 5

singing coming from the Cricketers which we considered loud enough to cause an 

unreasonable disturbance. The main entrance was left open even when not in use.

We wrote to and emailed the owner and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) Mr 

Mandeep Manik on 3rd September to notify him of our visit observations and to warn 

that should we continue to receive valid complaints formal action would be considered 

by our service and this may affect our comments to Licensing when assessing future 

Temporary Event Notifications.

Again we did not receive a response from the Cricketers, and complaints of noise 

disturbance continued to be made.  In response our service installed one of our 

calibrated recorders into the home of the complainant most affected on 21st September 

until 29th September.  The recordings were assessed and a noise nuisance was 

identified on Saturday 25th September between 19:26 to just past midnight.  Loud music 

and bass was audible above the residents TV.  We considered that the resident would 

not have been able to reasonably enjoy their home during this time. As repeated 

warnings to the Cricketers by our service appeared not to have prevented on-going 

noise nuisance we considered it appropriate at this time to serve a noise abatement 

notice on the Cricketers.  Notices were served on 5th October and the cover letter also 

advised that our service would object to future TENS of a nature likely to breach the 

notice. Copies were also emailed to Mr Manik the same day and we asked Mr Manik to 

withdraw the TEN he had submitted for 30th October for a Halloween party.

This resulted in our first contact from Mr Manik who emailed on the 5th October to 

advise that he felt like he was being victimised and as a family pub he is ‘following all 

the rules’ and has a great set of customers.

Whilst Mr Manik reluctantly withdrew his TEN for Halloween he persisted in accusing 

residents of being malicious in their complaints and insisting the Cricketers was not 

doing anything wrong.  Further noise complaints accompanied by audio taken on the 

Page 24



Signed…… ……………………………………..

Page 3 of 5

phone of one of the complaints appeared to show loud music coming from the 

Cricketers on Friday 15th October. Said to be from 18:00 and still ongoing at 22:40.

Myself and Piotr carried out another out of hours monitoring visit on 30th October.  

The public house is situated in a predominately residential area (see Google Plan1 and 

Street View 1).  When turning west into Arthur Street from Wrotham Road, we first 

noticed the music, approx. 130 meters away (All measurements taken from Google 

maps) from the public house. At the junction with Brandon Street approx. 60 meters 

away the music was at a level that we considered loud enough to cause a statutory 

nuisance to residents.

I recorded video with audio on my work iPhone (See KM1) as we walked towards the 

Cricketers PH and then walked past it in a westerly direction towards Darnley Road at 

approx. 23:50.  I observed that the Cricketer’s main door was closed for the most part, 

only occasionally being opened for customers to enter/leave.  There was a very strong 

smell in the seating area at the side of the property.  The music could still be clearly 

heard on Arthur Street approx. 95 meters away to the west of the Cricketers.  My 

colleague, PP, then contacted one of the complainants by mobile phone and arranged 

for us to call at their home.  The complainant advised us that the music had been 

causing a disturbance since 18:30 that day, and that on occasions the music had been 

louder.  The music inside the complainant’s home was loud enough that it felt like we 

were within a room inside the pub itself.  Lyrics were clearly audible from the song 

‘Show me love’.  When I touched the party wall in the hallway vibrations could be felt.  

The living room opposite to the hallway was exposed to the same volume of music.  

The volume of the music was in my opinion the loudest I have experienced in my career 

when assessing noise nuisances, and even a heavy sleeper would likely have been 

unable to fall or stay asleep.  It would not be possible for the average person to have 

been able to reasonably enjoy their own home.  

Page 25



Signed…… ……………………………………..

Page 4 of 5

After leaving we walked north on Cutmore Street.  The music was still audible until we 

turned west onto Spencer Street approx. 90 meters from the Cricketers.  

It is worth noting that following the visit, myself and Piotr carried out noise monitoring of 

the town centre High-street at approx. 00:10 which is home to a night club and 

numerous pubs, and the volume of noise experienced on the Highstreet was 

significantly less than we had witnessed emanating from the Cricketers PH.  It is my 

professional opinion that the Cricketers PH had breached the noise abatement notice 

served.

A letter and email advising of a witnessed breach of the noise abatement notice was 

sent to Mr Manik on 3rd November.  Mr Manik replied the same day by email to again 

deny doing anything wrong, claiming he is doing everything he can to be considerate to 

neighbours, and that complainants are malicious and trying to put him out of business.      

On the 16th November I contacted GBC Licensing and requested a license review as I 

considered the premises was failing to meet its licensing objective of the Prevention of 

Public Nuisance. 

It was after this action that the response from Mr Manik significant changed.  On the 1st 

December we were emailed by Mr Manik and advised that prior to service of the noise 

abatement notice they had been working hard to put in measures to prevent nuisance 

to neighbours.  One measure suggested was to only allow bands and DJ’s to operate 

until 10:45pm.  Whilst we acknowledge the positive change in direction, we considered 

that even with the earlier cut off time for bands and DJ’s that due to the small size of the 

venue and its proximity to residential properties that such events would likely cause an 

unreasonable nuisance at any time of day, and advised Mr Manik of this.

Mr Manik in reply, emailed on the 9th Dec a revised policy and risk assessment which 

now advised that DJ’s and live bands would not be allowed on the premises, and he 

invited us to meet him on site to discuss the new changes.  We accepted and met Mr 

Page 26



Signed…… ……………………………………..

Page 5 of 5

Manik at the Cricketers on the morning of 13th December.  During the visit we tested the 

volume of the Juke Box at a level they advised was typical for a Friday and Saturday 

night.  With the doors and windows closed the volume I observed on the road 

immediately opposite was low enough to not be considered unreasonable.

Mr Manik advised he intends to make the pub more food orientated and showed us the 

works in progress to install a new kitchen.  He also advised that he would be making 

the pub a members only pub so as to more easily restrict trouble makers.  We 

discussed with Mr Manik the possibility of the Cricketers having future music events 

under the TEN regime, and advised that the first step would be to see if the pub can 

operate normally week by week without causing unreasonable disturbances, and that if 

they could show this then we would consider not objecting to reasonable TENS.   Mr 

Manik also agreed to submit a variation application for his license to include the 

relevant changes such as times the Juke Box would be turned off.

Due to the positive direction that Mr Manik appears to be committed towards we 

instructed Legal Services to pause the prosecution case for breach of a noise 

abatement notice, until such time as we could either consider cancelling the action, or 

pursuing it depending on the most appropriate action to take.  

I however consider it appropriate for the license review to proceed as we understand 

that before the proposed changes can be added to the license, that de-regulated 

entertainment i.e. music between 8am and 11pm, must be re-regulated so that 

conditions within those times can be included on the license and enforced if breached.  

I understand that this can only be done at a license review.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Google Plan1

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Google Street View1

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Cricketers Public House 
47 Arthur Street 
Gravesend 
DA11 0PR 

Dear Recipient, 

Following the recent notice for a request to review the premises license in respect of ‘The 
Cricketers, 47 Arthur street, DA11 0PR we would like the following representation to be 
taken into consideration. 

We have been working extremely hard and putting extra measures in place prior to receiving 
your notice on how we can move ‘The Cricketers’ forward. 

We understand as a residential public house we need to take our neighbors into 
consideration so we have been holding meetings on how this can be realistically met. 

We are currently in the proceeds of putting in a catering kitchen, which is near completion so 
that we can be a more food-focused public house. With booth seating areas, to boost the 
concept of the Cricketers being a pub/diner. 

We have put in a lot of hard work and Money to ensure that this concept succeeds, enabling 
us to turn the Cricketers into a place that our local neighbors and current regulars have a 
friendly, comfortable environment to eat and drink in. 

We have cancelled 3 events following the notice, as we want you to see how seriously we 
are taking this and how much I as the license holder do not want to see our pub closed. 

A Bar Manager has been employed to ensure all of the following procedures are taken 
seriously by staff and customers, we have briefed staff members on all of the below and 
have re-iterated the importance of ensuring these steps are followed. 

A list of all barred customers has been completed and staff have been advised to contact the 
police if they attend and refuse to leave the premises. 

We have completed a detailed Risk Assessment and have summarized as follows: 

  
■When events are held on the premises bands and DJs speakers located away from Main 
entry doors and all music to finish promptly finish at 10.45pm 
■We will ensure that on any Event nights we will have SIA Accredited door supervisors on 
the premises 
■Notices have been put up on entry doors asking customers to be considerate when leaving 
the establishment  
■Asking customers to leave via the side gate to decrease the noise levels outside of the 
main entrance on Arthur Street. 

Page 37



 
 
 
■Notices have been put up advising all customers that no one is permitted out the front of 
the Cricketers from 8pm Monday – Sunday  
■On Event nights staff are to ensure noise levels are checked from outside the premises on 
regular intervals and noted within the diary to ensure we are not creating a disturbance. 
■Letters to be sent to all residents informing them of any events 2 weeks prior 
■ Keep good liaison with local police and check latest advice. 
■Manager to give talk to re-emphasise ‘coping with disputes’ training. 
■Ensure all incidents promptly investigated and written down in the incident log book and 
reported via 101 to obtain a Crime Ref No. 
■We will be looking into a Information sharing scheme with police and other licensed 
premises in the area – member of local Pubwatch aka G-Force for Gravesend. 
■We will be looking into making the Cricketers into a members only establishment  
 
We are extremely sorry for the issues that have previously occurred but please be assured 
we are putting every measure we can in place to ensure this does not happen going forward  
 
A letter of apology will be going out to our local residents detailing our proposed actions and 
we will also provide a contact number for someone they can liaise with should they wish to 
discuss anything or have any ideas on how we can all work together to ensure the Cricketers 
does not cause them any issues or distress 
 
Thank you for taking the time to read to our submission and we hope that you will allow us 
adequate time to show you the positive changes we will be making to ‘The Cricketers, Arthur 
Street’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



Risk assessment for The Cricketers
Company name: The Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, DA11 0PR  Assessment carried out by: Kerri Marsh

Date of next review: 01/11/2022                                     Date assessment was carried out: 01/11/2021

What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

Slips, Trips and 
Falls

Staff and customers
slipping/tripping/falling
suffering fractures and
bruising etc

■Staff clean up 
spillages immediately 
using suitable methods 
and leave the floor dry.
■Bar floor areas only 
washed out of hours 
staff know about proper 
use of detergents, 
■Good housekeeping – 
work areas kept tidy, 
goods stored suitably
etc.
■Drainage channels 
and drip trays provided 
where spills likely.
■Equipment maintained 
to prevent leaks onto 
floor.
■Good lighting in all 
areas including steps 
outside or access to
cellar areas.

■Put up Authorised Persons 
Only sign on cellar door.
■Reiterate message to staff that 
cellar door is to be locked when 
not needed for access by 
authorised staff
■Repair damaged floor 
covering.
■More lighting required behind 
the bar

Manager To be reviewed by 
Management P

age 39



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

■Ensure door to cellar 
is kept locked and key 
controlled so only
authorised staff can get 
access.
■Ensure stairways are 
not obstructed.
■Carpets firmly 
secured.
■Doormats for wet 
weather.
■No trailing cables or 
obstructions in 
walkways.
■Cable covers used for 
all electrical cables, 
especially when
hosting bands or DJs.

Falls from
height

Staff, Customers and 
public may suffer
serious, possibly fatal,
injuries if they fall from 
any height.

■Cellar hatches:
–– Check they have 
been closed after 
delivery.
–– Ensure other people 
are excluded from area 
while hatch open and in 
use.

■Ensure a member of staff 
oversees all deliveries and that 
the hatch is not left open 
unattended 

Staff Immediate Action 
required

VIOLENCE Staff and customers
may suffer stress and/
or physical injuries
from aggressive

■Staff adhere to legal 
requirement not to sell 
alcohol to intoxicated
customers.

■ Keep good liaison with local 
police and check latest advice.

Staff/ Senior 
Management

Immediate Action 
required

P
age 40



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

customers. ■Staff trained in good, 
polite behaviour and how 
to avoid confrontation 
following violence policy 
when to call police etc.
■Staff made aware of 
barred customers.
■Regular glass 
collection –‘glass policy’ 
implemented for very 
busy events or as 
appropriate.
■Cashing up done after 
hours/out of customers 
sight.

■Manager to give talk to re-
emphasise ‘coping with disputes’ 
training.
■Ensure all incidents promptly 
investigated and written down in 
the incident log book and 
reported via 101 to obtain a 
Crime Ref No.
■Consider having door 
supervisors on event 
nights/weekends if
practicable and will be of benefit.
■Information sharing scheme 
with police and other licensed
premises in the area – member 
of local Pubwatch aka G-Force 
for Gravesend

Manual Handling Staff receiving back,
neck and limb injuries
from lifting heavy loads
(eg barrels), crates of
bottles etc

■Staff training in lifting 
techniques and posture 
for items behind
the bar.

■Manual Handling training to be 
carried out with all staff members 
and recorded

Management      

C02 leakage Staff may be overcome
when charging CO2
while changing
barrels and soft drinks
dispenser in cellar

■Only staff trained by 
the brewery or pub 
company, manager,
partner and named staff 
member, change barrels.
■Safe working practice, 
in line with BBPA 
guidance.

■Put forward another full-time 
member of staff for training to 
cover absences and weekends.

Management      

P
age 41



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

■Cellar well ventilated 
with adequate, low-level, 
ventilation.

Pressurised
equipment

Risk of explosion from
over-pressurisation of
beer pump systems,
or faulty or damaged
cylinders

Pressurised systems:
■designed, installed 
and maintained in line 
with BBPAs Code
of Practice 2006, 
installation certificate 
obtained (copy at pub,
owner holds original);
■only trained staff – 
manager, partner and 
named member of staff 
who have undergone 
training to use the 
system;
■cleaning containers 
suitable to accept 
systems maximum
pressure and labelled to 
avoid confusion over 
detergents and flushing 
water;
■system inspected by 
competent engineer 
every five years or to
schedule produced by 
the competent engineer;

■ Put forward another full-time 
member of staff for training to 
cover absences.

Management

P
age 42



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

■certificate displayed 
stating date of next 
inspection; and
■any damage reported 
immediately.
Gas cylinders:
■only obtained from 
reputable suppliers;
■numbers kept to 
absolute minimum;
■moved and stored 
properly to prevent 
damage;
■stored in cages, 
chained up or laid flat 
and chocked (with
supplier’s agreement) 
away from heat sources, 
in a dry area with the 
valves closed; and
■used in an upright 
position in a safe, 
secure, dry place.

Noise Staff, customers and 
Local Residents

■Bands and DJs 
speakers located away 
from Main entry doors
■Notices have been put 
up on entry doors asking 
customers to be 
considerate when 

■To be discussed if events can 
be kept to a minimum or not held 
at all within the premises for a set 
amount of time
■Asking customers to leave via 
the side gate to decrease the 

Management Immediate action 
required

P
age 43



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

leaving the 
establishment

noise levels outside of the main 
entrance on Arthur Street.
■Staff to ensure noise levels are 
checked from outside the 
premises on regular intervals and 
noted within the diary
■Consider having an early 
closing time during the week & 
weekends
■Letters to be sent to all 
residents informing them of any 
events 2 weeks prior

Electricity Staff and customers
could get electric
shocks from faulty/
damaged wiring or
electrical equipment

■Wiring checked every 
five years by a qualified 
electrician.
■Regular PAT done by 
electrician.
■Staff trained to spot 
damaged equipment, 
plugs, cable and
fittings and take out of 
service.
■Staff told where fuse 
box is to turn off 
electricity in the event of 
an
emergency.
■Fuse box/consumer 
unit kept accessible at all 
times.

■Check to see if fuse box has 
30 mARCD protection.
■RCD sockets and plugs to be 
fitted if
protection not at consumer unit.
■Ensure induction talk for any 
new staff
or temporary staff includes how 
to turn
off the electricity.
■PAT testing to be carried out 
on equipment 

Management Immediate action 
required

P
age 44



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

Hazardous
substances

Staff can suffer
chemical burns or
develop dermatitis from
contact with, or use of,
cleaning chemicals

■All products safety 
data sheets checked to 
see what gloves, eye 
protection is necessary 
for use with the 
chemicals.
■Chemicals used 
reviewed with 
reps/supplier every six 
months to
see if ‘safer’ alternative 
available.
■Staff told about skin 
care when washing 
glasses, handling
dishwasher chemicals 
etc.
■Chemicals always kept 
in original labelled 
containers, any
containers for decanted 
chemicals clearly 
marked.
■PPE – gloves and eye 
protection available 
when using, decanting
or diluting chemicals.

■All staff need to be aware of 
COSHH and training records to 
be signed 

Management 

Fire Staff, Customers and 
Local residents

■Manager/senior staff 
member checks fire exits 
are clear.

■ Fire Risk Assessment to be 
completed

Management Immediate action 
required 

P
age 45



What are the 
hazards?

Who might be 
harmed and 
how?

What are you 
already doing to 
control the 
risks?

What further action do 
you need to take to 
control the risks?

Who needs to 
carry out the 
action?

When is the 
action needed 
by?

Done

■Weekly Fire Alarm checks to 
be carried out by Bar Manager 
and documented.
■Alarm Panel fault needs to be 
cleared

Cleaning Staff and Customers ■Daily Cleaning carried 
out by allocated 
members

■Cleaning regime to be 
implemented (Daily, weekly, 
monthly tasks to be carried out)
■Introduce an outside cleaning 
team to carry out the tasks

Management To be reviewed

Lone Working Staff ■Ensuring doors are 
locked when the last 
customer leaves

■Ensuring another member of 
staff is notified that you have 
safely left the premises

■Staff Immediate action 
required 

P
age 46



 
The Cricketers Public House 

47 Arthur Street 

Gravesend 

DA11 0PR 

Dear Recipient, 

Following the recent email with regards to the letter received by ****** I would like you to 

consider the following  

On numerous occasions this lady has verbally abused staff members and customers, along 

with her son in law and daughter. 

She was approached by a staff member who invited her in for a drink to which ****** 

accepted and joined the staff member they had a conversation and numbers were 

exchanged should there be any issues she could contact them directly so the issues could 

be addressed promptly to which she said she would – no text or call was ever received 

On another occasion she approached the bar manager to say Thank you for us being 

considerate and keeping the noise levels low and that she could see was trying and was 

extremely grateful 

She drank in the pub on 3 more occasions following these discussions  

On the 6th November 2021 ****** and her daughter came to the pub as she was invited by a 

member of staff to try and build relationships, there was a 50th birthday being held – she was 

dancing and drinking along with customers, later on in the evening when she was asked to 

leave she became aggressive and refused hurling abuse at several customers. 

An incident occurred outside the cricketers where one of our customers was hurt – to which 

we have photographic evidence  

The police arrived and ****** was arrested  

We have a crime reference number for this incident. 

Had our customers and staff sworn and verbally abused her I am unsure as to why she 

would feel comfortable drinking amongst all of us? 

We feel that this submission is only that of a malicious nature following the events of the 

6th/7th November 2021 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Consideration of an application for a review of the premises licence for Cricketers, 47 Arthur Street, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0PR
	Appendix 2 - Current Premises licence
	Appendix 3 - Application
	Appendix 4a - KM witness statement
	Appendix 4b - Google Plan1 - App4
	Appendix 4c - Google Street View1 - App4
	Appendix 5 - Representation - redacted
	Appendix 6 - Response from PLH
	Appendix 7 - Risk assessment from PLH
	Appendix 8 - Response to Byrne rep - redacted


